
 
 

Historic District Commission Meeting Agenda 
 
Wednesday, March 16, 2022 4:30 PM City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers 

 
Note: The public may join the meeting online or at City Hall in the 2nd Floor Council Chambers. 
To access the meeting online, visit www.zoom.us/join or call (646) 558-8656 and enter the 
Meeting ID: 824 1448 9213.* 
 

 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
2. Minutes of February 16, 2022 
3. Continued Public Hearing: 

COA-2022-01 – 35-43 & 45-47 Main St – T-Mobile Telecommunications 
Installation – Applicant T-Mobile Northeast LLC, on behalf of owner Mitchell H. 
Greenwald Revocable Trust, proposes to install a telecommunications facility on the 
roof of the existing building at 45-47 Main St (TMP# 575-025-000-000-000) and a 
generator on the property located at 35-43 Main St (TMP# 575-026-000-000-000). 
Both properties are ranked as Primary Resources and are located in the Downtown 
Core District.  

4. Discussion about the Role of the HDC with New Construction in the Downtown Historic 
District 

5. Staff Updates 
6. New Business 
7. Upcoming Dates of Interest  

a) Next HDC Meeting: April 20, 2022 – 4:30 pm 
b) HDC Site Visit: April 20, 2022 – 3:30 pm (To be confirmed) 

8. Adjourn 
 
*A Zoom link and call in information is being provided as a public service; however, the public body will be meeting in person with a 
quorum present at the location, date and time contained in this notice. If for some reason the Zoom link or call in does not work, the 
public meeting will continue in person.  

Page 1 of 86

http://www.zoom.us/join


City of Keene 1 

New Hampshire 2 

 3 

 4 

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 5 

MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 

Wednesday, February 16, 2022 4:30 PM Council Chambers, 
City Hall 

Members Present: 
Andrew Weglinski, Chair 
Russ Fleming, Vice Chair 
Councilor Catherine Workman  
Hans Porschitz  
Hope Benik 
Sam Temple 
 
Members Not Present: 
David Bergeron, Alternate 
Peter Poanessa, Alternate  

Staff Present: 
Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 
John Rogers, Community Development 
Director/Building and Health Official 
  

 8 

 9 

1) Call to Order and Roll Call 10 

 11 

Chair Weglinski called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM. Roll call was taken.  12 

 13 

2) Election of Chair and Vice Chair 14 

 15 

Chair Weglinski announced the first order of business as elections for Chair and Vice Chair. 16 

Chair Weglinski made a motion to have Mr. Fleming remain on as Vice Chair. Ms. Benik 17 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Mr. Fleming accepted.  18 

 19 

Mr. Fleming made a motion to have Mr. Weglinski remain on as Chair. Mr. Porschitz seconded 20 

the motion, which passed unanimously. Chair Weglinski accepted.  21 

 22 

3) Minutes of September 15, 2021 23 

 24 

Mr. Fleming made a motion to accept the minutes of September 15, 2021 as presented. Mr. 25 

Porschitz seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  26 

 27 

4) Public Hearings: 28 

 29 
COA-2022-01 – 35-43 & 45-47 Main St – T-Mobile Telecommunications Installation – 30 
Applicant T-Mobile Northeast LLC, on behalf of owner Mitchell H. Greenwald Revocable Trust, 31 

Page 2 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 2 of 16 
 

proposes to install a telecommunications facility on the roof of the existing building at 45-47 32 

Main St (TMP# 575-025-000-000-000) and a generator on the property located at 35-43 Main 33 
St (TMP# 575-026-000-000-000). Both properties are ranked as Primary Resources and are 34 

located in the Downtown Core District. 35 

Chair Weglinski read the above public hearing summary and asked staff for a recommendation 36 

on completeness for the application.  37 

Ms. Brunner stated the applicant has requested an exemption from providing a material sample 38 

and staff recommend that the commission grant the requested exemption and accept the 39 

application as complete.  40 

Chair Weglinski made a motion to recommend the application as complete. Councilor Workman 41 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 42 

Chair Weglinski opened the public hearing and invited the applicant forward to explain the 43 

project.  44 

Amy White, on behalf of T-Mobile, introduced herself as the presenter for the installation of the 45 

wireless facility at properties 35-43 and 45-47 Main Street. She passed out plans for the 46 

commission, which included the elevation view, the site plan identifying the location of the 47 

property, the roof top view and the generator and enclosure details.  48 

Ms. White explained that T-Mobile is proposing to install the wireless facility on two properties 49 

that are under contiguous ownership of Mitchell Greenwald Revocable Trust. The 6 antennas and 50 

6 remote radio heads (RRHs) will be located on the rooftop of 45-47 Main Street. She added that 51 

there are 3 sectors of the antennas and each sector has 2 antennas and 2 RRHs, which will be 52 

located in two boxes that are stealth material on top of the rooftop. The antennas and RRHs will 53 

be connected via fiber cabling, which will be in cable trays running across the rooftop and down 54 

the side of the building, then along another rooftop and into the interior of the building at 35-43 55 

Main Street. This is where the ground equipment will be located in the basement, which supports 56 

the antennas.  57 

Ms. White went on to state that the applicant is also proposing to install a generator on the 58 

exterior of the property at 35-43 Main Street on the ground level behind a PVC fence, which will 59 

be fully enclosed in an area with an already existing fence.   60 

Ms. White stated the enclosures are set back 16’ from each edge of the roof. Placement includes 61 

one at the front of the property along Main Street and one on the rear of the property that abuts 62 

the parking lot. They measure 8’ by 9’- 8” and stand 10’ above the roof. The roof itself is a total 63 

of 50’ above ground level and, with enclosures, it will be 60’ above ground level.  64 

Ms. White pointed out that when they designed the installation they designed it with the 65 

understanding that it would be located within a historic district and made accommodations to 66 

minimize the visual impact. Some of the concessions that were made were reducing the size of 67 

the antenna from the standard 8’ to 6’, which allowed them to reduce the height of the enclosure. 68 

She further explained that they went with two enclosures as opposed to three. Two of the sectors 69 

Page 3 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 3 of 16 
 

are located within one of the enclosures at the rear and the other is located in the enclosure near 70 

the parking lot. Ms. White went on to state that they set the enclosures as far back as they could 71 

without limiting propagation of the antennas. She explained that if they push the antennas too far 72 

back on the roof, the roof itself will create interference with the antenna and propagation of the 73 

signal. Ms. White continued to state that they also designed the boxes contiguously so they are 74 

the same size for symmetry purposes, and added that they could reduce the size of one of them 75 

by a bit more if desired.  76 

Ms. White proposed that the enclosures be painted black, noting that in larger cities like Boston 77 

that’s what’s taking place with their historic buildings. She added that they are open to other 78 

colors and designs.  79 

Chair Weglinski opened the floor for questions. 80 

Mr. Temple asked what the minimum height of the enclosures is. Ms. White answered that they 81 

can’t reduce the size any further, it’s as small as it can be for the antennas and allows air 82 

circulation and room for the pipes that the enclosure is mounted to.  83 

Mr. Fleming stated, when looking at the elevation plans, if the top of the box is 10’ above the 84 

roof and inside the box there’s an 8’ by 9’- 8” antenna assembly on a steel support, what is the 85 

advantage of going from an 8’ to 6’ antenna if the structure is 10’ off the top of the roof anyway. 86 

Ms. White stated they would need a 12’ box if they used an 8’ antenna. She explained that the 87 

boxes need to have a steel frame to sit on which is approximately 2’ of the 10’ overall height. 88 

Mr. Fleming asked if the steel frame would be visible above the roof and Ms. White answered 89 

that it should not be visible.  90 

Mr. Temple asked how far they could set the enclosures back before getting a compromised 91 

signal. Ms. White stated the plan is for them to be 16’ back, which already impairs the signal but 92 

is the furthest back they can go. She explained that this placement is dictated by the propagation 93 

and the roof structure/framing, meaning they have to locate over the structural spans of the 94 

building so they can put the steel frame on to support the enclosure. The 16’ placement will 95 

create shadowing which means the transmission from the antenna will hit the roof on the bottom 96 

propagation and degrade the signal.  97 

Councilor Workman asked what material the concealment containers are made of and what other 98 

color options are available. Ms. White stated the boxes are made out of fiberglass, which is radio 99 

frequency transparent. She went on to state that the boxes are painted, therefore the commission 100 

can choose any color that can be replicated with paint. She mentioned that there are wraps as an 101 

option as well but she is not as familiar with them as they are a new product. Councilor 102 

Workman added that she’s not a huge fan of the black coloring. Ms. White stated brick 103 

coloring/design is also an option.  104 

There being no further questions, Chair Weglinski invited staff comments.  105 

Ms. Brunner reviewed HDC regulations relevant to the application. She reported the first 106 

relevant standard as 21.5.4 which relates to utility, service and mechanical equipment. Section A 107 

of the standard states that mechanical equipment (e.g. HVAC units, transformers, etc.), 108 

Page 4 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 4 of 16 
 

telecommunications equipment, and antennas shall be set back on the roof of the building so as 109 

to be minimally visible from the street, or ground-mounted toward the rear of the building set as 110 

low to the ground as possible and with appropriate screening or landscaping to minimize 111 

visibility. Ms. Brunner stated the applicant described thoroughly the location of the proposed 112 

antennas and RRHs on the roof of the building and the enclosures set 16’ back from the front 113 

edge of the roof and 16’ back from the rear of the building. She went on to state that the second 114 

half of the proposal is to install a generator along the north building façade of the Latchis Block 115 

building located at 35-43 Main Street, near the west/rear end of the building. She reviewed that 116 

the applicant proposes to place the generator in an existing fenced in area. There is currently a 117 

lattice-style wood fence that you can see through so the applicant is proposing to install a new 118 

PVC fence in a stockade style.  119 

Ms. Brunner next reviewed the second standard, Section B, which states that new mechanical 120 

supply lines, pipes and ductwork shall be placed in inconspicuous locations and/or concealed 121 

with architectural elements, such as downspouts. She explained that the applicant is proposing to 122 

install hybrid fiber cabling in cable trays along the roof and the rear of the building and on the 123 

partial west elevation. In addition, the cabling is proposed to be painted to match the color of the 124 

underlying brick building to reduce its visual impact.  125 

Mr. Fleming referenced page 8 noting the photo of the existing fence area where the generator is 126 

proposed to be installed and it appears there is a doorway there. He wondered if that was an 127 

egress that could potentially be blocked by the generator. Ms. Brunner stated that would be 128 

reviewed as part of the building permit application and if it was a concern the applicant would 129 

need to come back through the HDC process.  130 

Chair Weglinski invited public comments. There were none.  131 

Chair Weglinski closed the public hearing and began deliberations. Mr. Fleming suggested they 132 

discuss color if there are concerns. Mr. Porschitz had a question for Ms. White. Chair Weglinski 133 

reopened the public hearing.  134 

Mr. Porschitz stated, with regards to the elevations provided, there were no pictures from the 135 

south coming up Main Street and wondered if that’s because it isn’t a concern. Ms. White stated 136 

she wasn’t 100% certain but typically the engineers would provide simulations of all locations 137 

where the enclosures are visible. She stated it’s possible that they provided only instances of 138 

prominent visibility and she will circle back with the engineering firm to get a certain answer. 139 

She added that it won’t be more visible coming from the south because there’s another property, 140 

55 Main Street, on the corner.  141 

There being no further questions, Chair Weglinski closed the public hearing.  142 

Councilor Workman expressed concern over the color of the boxes due to their visibility, noting 143 

her biggest concern is the view from the parking lot at Lindy’s diner and Gilbo Avenue. She 144 

stated there are hopes for future art corridor development in that area so visibility becomes 145 

important. She suggested a color that blends more with the current colors of the building, such as 146 

brick. Mr. Porschitz agreed with a brick color but without the pattern, suggesting maybe a 147 

Page 5 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 5 of 16 
 

rust/brown color. Mr. Temple stated he does not like the brick and mentioned the Colonial 148 

Theatre has a bluish-gray color, suggesting they could possibly do a gray color but he would 149 

prefer not to do black. Ms. Brunner added that the Colonial Theatre color was purposely 150 

designed to stand out from the historic portion of the building. Chair Weglinski stated he would 151 

agree with not making it a brick pattern because they don’t want to mimic the more historic part 152 

of the building. Councilor Workman added that she is not dead set on the brick and liked Mr. 153 

Temple’s suggestion of a blue/gray color similar to the Colonial Theatre. Mr. Porschitz argued 154 

that the two cases are different and suggested they pick a color that’s closer to the building color 155 

rather than mimicking the Colonial Theatre, as that’s an entire big box addition opposed to two 156 

small boxes on a roof. Mr. Fleming agreed with Mr. Porschitz and stated he doesn’t feel they 157 

have the mass to support a different color and would go with either black or a brick tone similar 158 

to the building color.  159 

There was short discussion about visibility from the south. Chair Weglinski commented that it 160 

seems they may need a continuation of discussion for the next meeting. 161 

John Rogers, Building and Health Official, recommended that they have the applicant bring in a 162 

sampling of possible colors for the commission to review. Ms. Brunner suggested the applicant 163 

could bring in renderings to show the different colors.  164 

Chair Weglinski reopened the public hearing and asked the applicant if she would be able to 165 

make it to the March 16th HDC meeting and provide additional color samples and images. Ms. 166 

White stated she could attend the next meeting and bring additional photo simulations that 167 

include different variations of colors. She also stated she will bring in simulations with visibility 168 

coming from the south of the rotary. Chair Weglinski requested visibility from the south of the 169 

rotary and one more vantage point in between. Ms. White stated she will provide them with a 170 

brick/rust color option and a gray color option, as well as any additional color renderings.  171 

Chair Weglinski closed the public hearing.  172 

Mr. Porschitz made a motion to continue the public hearing for COA-2022-01 to the March 16, 173 

2022 HDC meeting. Councilor Workman seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  174 

COA-2017-07, Modification #1 – 147 Main St – Building Demolition – Applicant Timothy 175 

Sampson, on behalf of owner 147 Main Street LLC, proposes to demolish the building located 176 
at 147 Main St (TMP# 584-060-000-000-000). The property is ranked as a Contributing 177 
Resource and is located in the Downtown Core District. 178 

Chair Weglinski read the above public hearing summary and called upon staff for a 179 

recommendation on application completeness. 180 

Ms. Brunner stated the applicant requests exemptions from submitting a site plan, architectural 181 

elevations, scale and massing depictions, and material examples as no new development is 182 

proposed at this time. Staff recommend that the Commission grant the requested exemptions, and 183 

accept the application as “complete.” 184 

Page 6 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 6 of 16 
 

Mr. Fleming asked staff if they would normally ask for a site plan, elevation, scale and massing 185 

depictions and materials examples to grant a demolition. Ms. Brunner replied that they would 186 

not, the aforementioned are general submission requirements for all major HDC projects. Mr. 187 

Fleming then asked for clarification on the recent changes to demolition rules within the historic 188 

district. Ms. Brunner explained that previously, the HDC had purview over all construction 189 

within the historic district; however, with the adoption of the Land Development Code the rules 190 

were changed so that only buildings that are 50 years or older go through the HDC and anything 191 

younger than 50 years would be exempt. Mr. Fleming asked if there were rules specific to 192 

demolition that were changed. Ms. Brunner stated because the construction of a new building is 193 

no longer under the HDC’s purview, they removed the requirements that a demolition 194 

application include the plans for new construction. She went on to state that part of the reasoning 195 

behind the changes were due to the City establishing new form-based zoning districts downtown, 196 

which took over a little of what the HDC would have been reviewing.  197 

Chair Weglinski made a motion to recommend the application as complete. Ms. Benik seconded 198 

and the motion passed. Mr. Fleming abstained. Chair Weglinski invited the applicant forward.  199 

Timothy Sampson of Sampson Architects presented on behalf Mike Pappas, the owner of 147 200 

Main Street LLC. He stated they are presenting an application to request demolition of the 201 

building located at 147 Main Street, which suffered a traumatic fire a number of weeks ago. He 202 

explained referred to a report from a structural engineer citing major damage to the building 203 

structure and deeming it unsafe per building code. He went on to state that they meet at least 2 of 204 

the 3 criteria set forth by the City for allowing demolition of a structure. The building has been 205 

deemed structurally unsound and retaining the resource would constitute economic hardship. He 206 

further explained that there have been questions about saving the exterior walls; however, the 207 

lateral stability of the exterior walls have been compromised. He noted that the exterior walls 208 

help form the structural system of the building in tandem with the interior structure, so one 209 

cannot be defined as compromised without also defining the other as compromised. He stated 210 

that attempting to save the exterior walls would complicate demolition and be a financial burden 211 

for the owner. Mr. Sampson stated their request is to take the building down in its entirety and be 212 

able to re-utilize the prominent site to its highest potential as one of the first new buildings 213 

downtown in a long time.  214 

Mike Pappas, owner of the building, stated he and Mr. Sampson have talked about replacing the 215 

building with a new four sided brick building potentially on the exact same footprint, unless 216 

expansion off the back side became an option to allow an elevator. He added that the new 217 

building would be fully armed with sprinkler systems and insulated up to today’s standards. Mr. 218 

Pappas assured the commission that it is their intent to take note of the existing buildings 219 

downtown and make the new building fit in with architectural similarities. He mentioned that he 220 

owns the building next to 147 Main Street and has been following HDC guidelines steadfastly 221 

with that property. 222 

Mr. Temple asked if they are anticipating the new building to be mixed use. Mr. Pappas stated 223 

they plan the first floor to be commercial use and the second floor to be higher end 1-2 bedroom 224 

units. He added that he is not certain which business will go in the building but is not a big fan of 225 

Page 7 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 7 of 16 
 

having another bar. It was noted that the original intent of the current building was a grocery 226 

store. Mr. Temple stated on social media Keene residents have been sharing their memories of 227 

everything that inhabited the building in the past.  228 

Councilor Workman asked why they were asking for demolition at this time if they don’t have 229 

immediate plans for the new building, other than it being structurally unsafe. Mr. Pappas stated 230 

the building has been deemed unsafe and that is the reason for their request to demolish. He 231 

reiterated that he loves downtown, has lived there his whole life and intends to replace the 232 

building with one that matches the historical context. Councilor Workman requested 233 

confirmation that the safety of the building warrants demolition sooner rather than later. Mr. 234 

Rogers, the Interim Community Development Director and the Building and Health Official, 235 

stated if the building was not in the historic district, he as a building official would be ordering 236 

the building to be torn down, or shored up to save the building, if possible and not cost 237 

prohibitive. He added that this is based off of the structural engineer’s report who had great 238 

access to assess the building with the use of the aerial bucket truck that was present. Mr. Rogers 239 

mentioned that the building is right at the property line downtown on both the front and side.  240 

Chair Weglinski asked if there is any current requirement from the City to order them to 241 

demolish the building. Mr. Rogers stated there is not at the current time because the applicant 242 

was quick to get in front of the commission.  243 

Chair Weglinski stated, although the report demonstrates obvious destruction to the innards of 244 

the building and some of the intersections which help support the exterior masonry walls, it 245 

indicates that there was little to no damage to the brick. He asked the applicant what the options 246 

are for saving the exterior masonry. Mr.Pappas stated they found at least one dozen cracks 247 

throughout the building, some from the fire and some from settling, and can’t completely agree 248 

that the exterior has not been compromised. He went on to state that the inside is built as one 249 

package with the outside, so the bricks may be okay but the actual structure itself is unsafe. Mr. 250 

Sampson added that the report states “the exterior masonry wall does not appear to have been 251 

directly damaged by the fire; however, the lateral support provided by the roof framing system 252 

has been lost, resulting in compromised structural integrity of the exterior masonry walls.” 253 

Chair Weglinski stated he understands that they could potentially save the exterior walls as an 254 

option but it would be more expensive and time consuming. The applicant agreed.  255 

Mr. Fleming asked if the structural engineer was aware that the building was a historic district 256 

building when doing his assessment, noting that he cited the international existing building code 257 

but failed to mention the chapter in the code that deals with historic buildings. Mr. Pappas 258 

answered that he doesn’t believe the engineer was aware, he was simply asked to determine 259 

whether or not the building was structurally sound.  260 

Mr. Temple asked if the historic district has an impact on the fire code. Ms. Brunner stated it is 261 

best to stick to HDC demolition standards and noted that the commission could ask the applicant 262 

to provide more information about the economic hardship if saving the building is desired. She 263 

reminded the commission that economic hardship is one of the standards by which demolition 264 

could be granted. Additionally, Ms. Brunner stated if the building poses a safety risk to the 265 

Page 8 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 8 of 16 
 

public, demolition can also be granted. Mr. Rogers stated the existing building code gives some 266 

different allowances when renovating or doing additions for historic buildings but doesn’t 267 

necessarily deal with demolition. He cautioned the commission to think about asking for 268 

additional information and suggested that if they do request additional information that it be 269 

conditional upon the building being shored up. This is important since it is unsafe and right up on 270 

the property lines with city sidewalks blocked off for safety concern. 271 

Councilor Workman asked, if approved, how soon demolition of the building would begin. Mr. 272 

Pappas stated they would need to obtain permitting and signatures and they would need to act 273 

fast because it’s unsafe and there is no roof currently, which is allowing for ice accumulation. 274 

Mr. Sampson added that the permitting process has begun so it could happen in less than a week.  275 

There being no additional questions, Chair Weglinski invited staff comments.  276 

Ms. Brunner reviewed the history of the building and the fire incident. She referenced a couple 277 

of excerpts from the property inventory form. One statement read “The Occhipinti Block 278 

occupies an important corner lot and effectively defines the southern limit of commercial 279 

development. It is an excellent representation of an early 20th century business block.” 280 

Character-defining features noted on the form include: the orientation of the building toward 281 

Main Street; horizontal design elements, especially expressed in bands of vertically laid brick; 282 

cast stone trim; the size and spacing of window openings; the outer storefronts, which retain a 283 

high degree of historic fabric; and the southern storefront that wraps around the corner. Due to 284 

the location of the building on the lot, its scale and massing, pedestrian orientation, and high 285 

level of integrity, this property is ranked as a “Contributing Resource.” Ms. Brunner then 286 

explained the relevant standards of HDC regulations listed in Section 21.7.1 of the Land 287 

Development Code. The section states that in making a determination whether or not to grant a 288 

Certificate of Appropriateness for the demolition of a structure categorized as a Primary or a 289 

Contributing Resource, the HDC must find by a simple majority vote that one of the criteria #1-3 290 

listed in the section have been met; or, the HDC must find by a two-thirds vote that there are 291 

extraordinary circumstances that warrant demolition. The criteria are as follows:  292 

1. The applicant can demonstrate that retaining the resource would constitute 293 

economic hardship due to unavoidable quantifiable and verifiable expenditures or a fiscal 294 

loss that would ensue should the building not be demolished; or  295 

2. The building or structure has been determined structurally unsound, based upon a 296 

written technical report prepared by an architect or professional engineer licensed in the 297 

State of New Hampshire that clearly demonstrates that the building or structure presents a 298 

risk to public health, safety and welfare; or 299 

3.  Demolition is limited to a secondary building or a free-standing structure on the 300 

same property that has not been cited on the historic resource inventory form as a 301 

significant resource or character-defining feature; or  302 

4. The Historic District Commission, by a two-thirds vote, determines that 303 

demolition is warranted due to extraordinary circumstances.” 304 

Page 9 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 9 of 16 
 

Ms. Brunner went on to state that the applicant submitted a letter stamped by Stephen C. Tarbox, 305 

PE dated January 10, 2022, which concludes that the building sustained significant structural 306 

damage to approximately 75% of the combined first floor, second floor, and roof areas. Although 307 

the exterior brick masonry walls did not sustain any direct fire damage, their structural integrity 308 

has been compromised due to the loss of lateral support provided by the roof framing system. 309 

This letter and accompanying photos are included as attachments to the staff report. 310 

Chair Weglinski invited the public to come forward.  311 

Catherine Harper of 279 Marlboro Street in Keene, NH stated she was one of the original 312 

founding members of the Heritage Commission and their charge was to establish a historic 313 

district downtown. She mentioned how lucky they were to have a beautiful downtown with so 314 

much preserved history and stated she has an emotional attachment to the historic district. Ms. 315 

Harper went on to state that she is grateful someone from town bought the property and 316 

emphasized that when you take a building down you also impact all of the memories and stories 317 

that come with it, mentioning some of her own personal memories. She brought up the Keene 318 

Comprehensive Master Plan, which she played a part in creating, and reminisced on how people 319 

came together and voiced what was important to them and pointed out that architecture and 320 

preserving Keene’s history of architecture were a significant part of that. She mentioned a few 321 

statements from the Master Plan, including that preservation of historical resources plays a role 322 

in achieving community sustainability. She concluded by requesting that the commission get a 323 

second opinion by another structural engineer and further explore costs to save and renovate the 324 

building. She stated her aim as a member of the community is to speak for some historic 325 

preservation and thanked the commission for what they do.  326 

Chair Weglinski closed the public hearing and began HDC deliberations. He stated, in reviewing 327 

the criteria, what hadn’t been made clear is the demonstration of economic hardship. He added 328 

that it’s an interesting thing to consider because the building is unsafe unless temporarily shored 329 

up, and if they ask for more information it could potentially leave an unsafe building up for 330 

however long it takes to come to some agreement.  331 

Mr. Fleming suggested they listen to the NHMA presentation for some possible guidance on 332 

their roles and responsibilities before continuing discussion. He added that he would be willing 333 

to allow shoring up of 3 walls and removal of a back wall but stated once they grant permission 334 

for demolition it ends the commission’s involvement all together based on the new City rules. He 335 

expressed concern over this and wanted to make sure they aren’t relinquishing their 336 

responsibility as the HDC. Ms. Brunner stated the presenter will not comment on specific 337 

projects but rather the general roles and responsibilities of the HDC.  338 

Mr. Rogers reviewed that there are historic district rules and regulations and one of them 339 

specifically speaks to demolition with certain criteria that the applicant has to meet. He went on 340 

to state that the applicant provided documentation to meet criteria #2 and hinted at #1 without 341 

documentation as of now, which he suggested may not be necessary since they already meet 342 

criteria #2. He encouraged the commission to look at whether or not the applicant has met the 343 

criteria.  344 

Page 10 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 10 of 16 
 

Mr. Porschitz stated that according to the information they have reviewed, they have no means to 345 

decline the application for demolition. He went on to state that the engineer deemed it to be 346 

structurally unsound and as soon as that happened it seems that there was no longer anything the 347 

commission could do to stand against that, even if they would prefer to save the building. Chair 348 

Weglinski recalled that an applicant can meet all of the criteria but it is still up to the HDC to 349 

grant demolition. Ms. Brunner commented that if the HDC has found that one of the criteria has 350 

been met then they do need to follow their own rules and grant permission for demolition. She 351 

added that if they do decide to ask the applicant for more information the City would ask the 352 

applicant to shore up the building.  353 

Mr. Fleming stated he doesn’t feel the written technical report clearly demonstrates that the 354 

building presents a risk to public health, safety or welfare. He expressed that the historic district 355 

has some judgement to say they want to preserve the front or corner of the building until they can 356 

see what will be built there and have some say in reviewing those plans. He reiterated that if they 357 

grant permission for demolition, they then have to trust the Planning Board to do their job.  358 

Ms. Brunner stated if they decide to continue the public hearing they need to be clear about what 359 

additional information they would like the applicant to bring forward so they can be prepared.  360 

Mr. Fleming brought up asking the applicant to preserve one corner of the façade and granting 361 

permission to demolish the rest of the building. He stated this would keep the building an 362 

existing historic structure and allow the commission to have some say in terms of what replaces 363 

it. Ms. Brunner stated the commission will have to condition their approval of the demolition and 364 

back it up with their standards to explain why they are making that choice. She recognized their 365 

difficult decision and cautioned them because that would mean they are allowing the building to 366 

stand for another month when it poses an immediate public safety risk. Mr. Fleming stated he 367 

would be willing to preserve that southern storefront that wraps around the building, noting it 368 

was earlier referenced as one of the character defining features. He explained that he feels 369 

strongly that the HDC isn’t doing their job to preserve the historic fabric of the City and the 370 

historic district if they allow demolition. He recognized that the situation is taking place because 371 

of the changes made by the City with regards to HDC purview when it comes to new 372 

construction within the historic district, and expressed frustration.   373 

Mr. Temple disagreed, stating that this is not a litmus test for the HDC’s scope and authority, but 374 

rather a decision on whether or not an unsafe building should remain standing or be demolished. 375 

Chair Weglinski expressed that some of the members may be struggling with the decision 376 

because they are trying to preserve the historical fabric of the neighborhood and this building is a 377 

very visible and important part of the Main Street and historic district, which really should 378 

continue to be under the HDC’s review. He asked, if they agree on demolition, if there is a way 379 

for them to add a stipulation that the new design has to come back for review and approval 380 

through the HDC. Ms. Brunner stated as of now the commission adopted the regulations that 381 

state new construction is not under their purview and noted that they could weigh in as members 382 

of the public at the public hearing before the Planning Board. She continued to state that there 383 

are form based zoning standards in place now, which regulates the placement of the building on 384 

Page 11 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 11 of 16 
 

the lot, the scale and massing, and requires a certain amount of fenestration. She noted that the 385 

standards replicate to some extent what the HDC’s standards previously were for new 386 

construction and are a bit more stringent because it’s codified in zoning.  387 

Chair Weglinski asked if the HDC could amend the standards. Ms. Brunner stated they would 388 

have to do that through a public hearing process, which would need to take place in the future.  389 

Councilor Workman expressed understanding for the predicament they are in as a commission, 390 

noting that if they are giving up some control as the HDC they will have to put some blind faith 391 

in other boards and the owner, Mr. Pappas. She went on to state that Mr. Pappas seems to have 392 

Keene and Main Street’s best interest in mind and would like to have faith that he will 393 

accommodate some of their wishes moving forward. She hoped that if it is possible to save some 394 

of the brick during the demolition process that that would be done and mentioned possibly using 395 

the old bricks for a walkway or something similar. She also suggested, if demolition is approved, 396 

that they could have a green space of some sort in the space while waiting for construction. She 397 

ended by saying a burnt building on Main Street is both unsafe and an eye sore and people will 398 

likely find a way to use it as shelter the longer it remains standing.  399 

Mr. Temple agreed and noted that he does not take the HDC’s role lightly but agrees that they 400 

need to trust the other boards and the owner. He added that character is an indefinable quality 401 

and doesn’t always mean preserving the structure. They can look at this like an opportunity but it 402 

will require trust.  403 

Mr. Porschitz agreed and commented that Mr. Pappas has shown with his other building that he 404 

follows through with HDC wishes and he would trust him with the responsibility; however, the 405 

predicament maintains that once they approve demolition of the building the owner could sell it 406 

tomorrow and the HDC won’t have any control over that or know if they can trust the new 407 

owner. He also recognized that the property needs to be safe and to deem structural soundness he 408 

feels they need to examine further. He reiterated that he trusts Mr. Pappas but it’s hard to form an 409 

opinion in this situation.  410 

Chair Weglinski re-opened the public hearing and asked Mr. Pappas if he had any ideas or 411 

comments.  412 

Mr. Pappas stated the City of Keene hired the engineer that completed the report so the views are 413 

not skewed. He added that going back in with a new engineer will take months and the building 414 

condition will only worsen because there is no roof. Additionally, the original engineer was able 415 

to use the aerial bucket truck because it was present at the time but walking through the building 416 

now is a liability risk. Mr. Pappas reiterated that he is from Keene and his family has been a part 417 

of Keene and the property for well over 80 years. He understands the commission’s hesitation 418 

and stated he is only present because the building was deemed unsafe by an engineer hired by the 419 

City. He went on to state that he sees this as a unique opportunity to do something downtown 420 

that can’t be done anymore. He assured the commission that he intends to put up another brick 421 

building that looks like Keene and the downtown area and improve on the aesthetics.  422 

Page 12 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 12 of 16 
 

Chair Weglinski asked how quickly they could temporarily shore up the building if they were to 423 

a have a continuation of the hearing. Mr. Pappas stated a structural engineer would have to 424 

design a system and put a price on it and that process would likely take at least 2 months.  425 

There being no further questions for the applicant and no public comments, Chair Weglinski 426 

closed the public hearing. He stated that the historical aspect is very important but if anyone 427 

were to get hurt he does not want to be responsible for that and thus is inclined, reluctantly, to 428 

make the motion as it stands. Mr. Fleming expressed that he feels the City has put them in a 429 

tough position and even if they were to delay the demolition he suspects the City would go forth 430 

with it anyway. Ms. Brunner stated the building official doesn’t have authority to make the 431 

decision until the HDC reviews, unless the building poses an immediate health risk, in which 432 

case the City could issue an emergency permit.  433 

Chair Weglinski made a motion to approve COA-2017-07, Modification #1 for the demolition of 434 

the Occhipinti Block building located at 147 Main Street. Mr. Temple seconded the motion. All 435 

in favor except for Mr. Fleming who abstained. The motion passed.  436 

Mr. Temple left the meeting at 5:48pm. 437 

5) NHMA Presentation - Steve Buckley, Legal Counsel for the New Hampshire Municipal 438 

Association (NHMA), will provide a virtual presentation titled “Historic District Commission 439 

role and responsibilities.” This presentation is offered as part of the NHMA on-demand training 440 

series. 441 

 442 

Mr. Buckley presented on the HDC’s roles and responsibilities beginning with the Right-To-443 

Know law and how it relates to the business of being on a public body. He mentioned that even 444 

when there is a meeting taking place without agenda items, or even a work session, those are still 445 

a public meeting which require public notices, minutes, etc. Hearings have additional 446 

requirements. He went on to explain that minutes are to be made available upon request within 5 447 

business days of the meeting and covered what those minutes should include. He noted that it is a 448 

better practice to post meeting minutes on the City website but they are not required to do so 449 

until the minutes are approved. With regards to minutes, he also noted that the requirements are 450 

rather broad and should include members present, summary of subject matter and decisions 451 

reached, and persons making and seconding motions; however, as a land use board they want to 452 

have robust and detailed minutes so they can have evidence in the record that supports their 453 

decisions as the HDC.  454 

Mr. Buckley next reviewed nonpublic sessions which he stated have to be for a specific reason 455 

and must go in the order of beginning in public, voting to enter nonpublic, conducting the 456 

session, return to public session, and vote on sealing minutes if appropriate. He noted that the 457 

only common reason for them to be in nonpublic session would be for either consultation with 458 

legal counsel, which is considered a non-meeting, or for consideration of legal advice. 459 

Mr. Buckley reminded them that it’s important to avoid communication outside of a meeting, 460 

including sending emails to a quorum of fellow board members. He encouraged them to use the 461 

blind CC distribution method and cautioned against hitting reply all.  462 

Page 13 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 13 of 16 
 

Mr. Buckley next went over conflicts of interest and disqualification. He highlighted that they act 463 

like a judge because their job is to receive evidence, hear parties on two sides of a question, 464 

weigh the evidence, apply legal standards, and make a decision. He explained that if you have 465 

direct personal interest you are going to be required to recuse yourself. Mr. Buckley gave the 466 

example of having a business or personal relationship with an applicant, stating that would be a 467 

circumstance which would require you to recuse yourself. He pointed out another important 468 

aspect of the statute which states that “reasons for disqualification do not include exemption 469 

from service as a juror or knowledge of the facts involved gained in the performance of the 470 

member’s official duties.” He explained that they want involved members of the community to 471 

be on land use boards to help inform decision making.  472 

Mr. Buckley next reviewed the juror standard and the questions you can expect to be asked. He 473 

noted that it’s important to make sure you have not committed an act of pre-judgement. Mr. 474 

Buckley then went over specific circumstances that would justify or require a judicial body 475 

member to recuse themselves, which included abutters, pre-judgement or previously having 476 

shared your point of view on the matter, financial interest in the outcome, employment, family 477 

relations, and business relationship. With regards to family relations he stated if your spouse is 478 

an advocate on a particular side, it does not mean you have to recuse yourself. Mr. Buckley 479 

stated in the case of a conflict other things you can do aside from recuse yourself are disclosure 480 

or an advisory vote, but when in doubt he encouraged recusal.  481 

HDC fundamentals were covered next starting with RSA 674:45 and HDC purposes and then 482 

moving on to RSA 674:46 and the HDC’s specific authority. Mr. Buckley reminded everyone 483 

that if they are going to adopt a regulation under RSA 675:6, they should be sure that once the 484 

regulation is adopted, an adoption certificate is prepared by staff, signed by the board members 485 

in favor and delivered to the City Clerk. Until those steps have taken place a standard cannot go 486 

into effect.  487 

Mr. Buckley stated RSA 674:48 Interpretation is very important because it makes it clear that the 488 

idea of a HDC is not intended to prevent ordinary maintenance or repair of any structure in the 489 

historic district. He clarified that no one needs to have a permit to carry out ordinary 490 

maintenance or repair. Additionally, there’s nothing that prevents the construction, alteration, 491 

repair, moving or demolition of a structure under a permit issued by the building inspector prior 492 

to the establishment of any historic district.  493 

Mr. Buckley reiterated that the HDC is a Land Use Board which is an important concept because 494 

under the zoning and planning statutes certain mandatory operations are attached. He further 495 

explained that the HDC is made up of 3 to 7 members as decided by City Council. One member 496 

may be on the planning board and one member may be on the select board, or City Council, and 497 

5 alternates may be appointed. When appointing, the appointing authority, which would be City 498 

Council, may take into account an appointee’s interest in historic preservation.  499 

Next, Mr. Buckley reviewed Rules of Procedure for Land Use Boards, which will tell how the 500 

board conducts meetings. He mentioned that these should include when and how an alternate 501 

may participate in meetings. Other obligations covered were RSA 676:3 and the issuance of a 502 

Page 14 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 14 of 16 
 

final written decision, which shall be copied and made available to the applicant. If not approved, 503 

the board shall provide the applicant with written reasons for the disapproval. If approved, the 504 

board shall include a detailed description of all necessary conditions. 505 

RSA 676:8 “Issuing Building Permit Approvals” was covered next. Mr. Buckley summarized 506 

that the HDC’s job is to review the applications and then assess the impacts. With this they can 507 

request reports from different parties and seek advice from groups and ultimately file with the 508 

building inspector.  509 

Chair Weglinski asked if they want the Planning Board to include the HDC in the review process 510 

of a new building, do they have the right to do that with the understanding that they would not 511 

have a right to delay or vote on anything. Mr. Buckley stated, in his ZBA, staff send applications 512 

to the Planning Board, Fire Chief, Police Chief, building inspector and town manager for review 513 

and feedback. He suggested that the HDC could solicit that kind of information in time for their 514 

public hearing. With regards to new construction and the fact that the HDC’s ordinance does not 515 

allow them to have influence on new construction, he stated it might be difficult to incentivize 516 

the Planning Board and attach conditions to how the application is implemented. Chair 517 

Weglinski commented that they could amend the existing guidelines so that they can make 518 

stipulations moving forward if they go through the correct process and stated they should keep 519 

that in mind. Mr. Fleming added that this would be a change to the zoning ordinance and Mr. 520 

Buckley agreed which would mean it would go to City Council. He added that they have the 521 

ability to adopt regulations but they have to be consistent with the Zoning Ordinance. Ms. 522 

Brunner stated they could propose, in the instance of demolition of a contributing or primary 523 

resource, that the HDC does have a say in the process, which would have to go through City 524 

Council.  525 

Mr. Buckley next reviewed that the HDC has 45 days after the filing of the application to file a 526 

certificate of approval or notice of disapproval, and failure to file within the specified time will 527 

constitute approval by the commission. He added that no building permit can be issued until a 528 

certificate of approval has been issued. In the case of disapproval, that is binding upon the 529 

building inspector, so the HDC is an important waypoint. He encouraged the HDC to work with 530 

the applicant if they need more time and to get that in writing.  531 

Rehearing and Appeal of HDC Decision 677:17 was briefly covered and then Mr. Buckley 532 

reviewed an important court case. The case was Hanrahan v. Portsmouth and Mr. Buckley 533 

explained that when the HDC makes a decision it needs to be a reasoned decision and the statute 534 

imposes a duty on you to make a group assessment of information that is not just based on the 535 

personal opinion of one or more of the members.  536 

Mr. Fleming asked if Mr. Buckley was aware of any other municipalities that have a HDC that 537 

has no authority over new construction in the historic district. Mr. Buckley could not recall an 538 

instance where that was the case, although he has advised the Somersworth HDC the most and 539 

stated he does not know enough about HDC regulations to answer the question. He mentioned 540 

that the Office of Planning and Development has an inventory of all zoning ordinances 541 

Page 15 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 15 of 16 
 

throughout the state, including HDC regulations. They may be able to extract from that the 542 

communities that have a similar regulation on limitation of new construction by HDC.  543 

Mr. Buckley concluded his presentation by thanking the commission and emphasizing that he is 544 

available through the legal advisory service to provide answers to questions by telephone or 545 

email. Ms. Brunner reminded the commission that they also have their own City Attorney 546 

available for questions.  547 

6) Staff Updates 548 

 549 

1. List of 2021 Minor Project Approvals as of December 31, 2021 550 

2. Update – Community Kitchen Solar PV Array Project (COA-2014-07,  551 

Modification #2) – Ms. Brunner stated this is a project that the HDC originally approved 552 

a couple of years ago and it came back for a modification to install equipment on the 553 

front façade of the building, which is not generally allowed. She updated them that the 554 

equipment has been installed but it has not been painted to match the building yet; 555 

however, the applicant has provided a solid reason for delay and it will be taking place in 556 

the spring.  557 

 558 

7) New Business 559 

 560 

Chair Weglinski stated they will add to next meeting’s agenda a discussion about the zoning 561 

amendment and obtaining the opportunity to review new construction within the historic 562 

district. He added that it’s worth having a discussion given the challenges they are currently 563 

experiencing and suggested they also discuss why the HDC process was changed in the first 564 

place. He recognized the difficulty of evaluating a demolition without evaluating what will be 565 

replacing it. Ms. Brunner stated the topic would be appropriate to discuss at the next meeting.  566 

 567 

Mr. Fleming added that it’s good they all trust Mr. Pappas but they can’t trust everyone so it 568 

puts them in a bad position. Chair Weglinski added that the historic district is vast but when the 569 

building in question is right on the corner of Main Street that makes things a little different than 570 

a building that is further out.  571 

 572 

Mr. Rogers stated he understands having an applicant bring forward drawings for a replacement 573 

building but stated, in this situation, it’s very unlikely due to the fact that the building is unsafe 574 

and the damage happened so quickly. It’s a unique situation and different than someone simply 575 

wanting to tear a building down.  576 

 577 

8) Upcoming Dates of Interest 578 

1. Next HDC Meeting: March 16, 2022). Ms. Brunner stated this will included the 579 

continued public hearing for T-Mobile. 580 

2. HDC Site Visit: March 16, 2022 (To be confirmed)  581 

 582 

 583 

Page 16 of 86



HDC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 16, 2022 

Page 16 of 16 
 

 584 

9) Adjournment 585 

 586 

There being no further business, Chair Weglinski adjourned the meeting at 7:20 PM. 587 

 588 

Respectfully submitted by, 589 

Nicole Cullinane, Minute Taker 590 

 591 

Reviewed and edited by, 592 

Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 593 

Page 17 of 86



STAFF REPORT - Addendum 

COA-2022-02 – 35-43 & 45-47 Main Street – T-Mobile Telecommunications Installation 

Request: 
Applicant T-Mobile Northeast LLC, on behalf of owner Mitchell H. Greenwald Revocable Trust, 
proposes to install a telecommunications facility on the roof of the existing building at 45-47 Main 
St (TMP# 575-025-000-000-000) and a generator on the property located at 35-43 Main St (TMP# 
575-026-000-000-000). Both properties are ranked as Primary Resources and are located in the
Downtown Core District.

Background: 
The request is to install six antennas and six remote radio heads on the roof of the 45-47 Main 
Street building inside two enclosures, install hybrid fiber cabling in cable trays along the rear of 
the building to connect to ground equipment located in the basement, and install a generator on 
the northwest portion of the 35-43 Main Street property.  

The Historic District Commission (HDC) reviewed this request at the February 16, 2022 HDC 
meeting and voted to continue the public hearing to March 16, 2022. The Commission asked the 
Applicant to provide additional information regarding the aesthetic impact of the proposed 
enclosures, including the view of the proposed enclosures from the south and different color 
options, such as gray and brick red. The two enclosures will each be 10 feet tall and set back 16 
feet from the edge of the roof of the 50-foot tall building. Due to their height, the two enclosures 
would be visible from several locations, including Main Street, Central Square, Saint James 
Street, and Gilbo Avenue. 

The Applicant submitted new renderings on March 9, 2022 that include two additional views of 
the project site from the south looking north. In addition, these renderings show several different 
color options, including black, a red brick color, gray, and a tan brick color for the enclosure closest 
to Main Street and a red brick color for the enclosure located further back on the building. These 
renderings are included as attachments to this report. The full set of plans and elevations were 
included in the agenda packet for the February 16, 2022 HDC meeting. 

Recommendation: 
If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following language is recommended for a 
motion: 

Approve COA-2022-02 for the installation of a telecommunications facility and generator 
on the properties located at 35-43 and 45-47 Main Street, as presented on the plan set 
identified as “Site Number: 4KN0339A, Site Name: 55 Main St. Keene RT” prepared by 
AEG Advanced Engineering Group, P.C. on September 7, 2021 and last revised on 
November 17, 2021 with the following conditions: 

1. Submittal of revised color elevations to show the Historic District Commission’s
preferred color for the stealth enclosures.

Page 18 of 86



2015.3 
National Development 

 
 

 
15 Commerce Way, Norton, MA  02766 

 
 
 
March 9, 2022  
 
 
 
City of Keene 
Historic District Commission 
3 Washington Street 
Keene, NH  03431            
 
RE: T-Mobile Northeast LLC   
 Proposed Wireless Facility 
 35-43 Main Street and 45-47 Main Street, Keene, NH 
 
To Whom it May Concern: 
 
 In support of the Major Application submitted by T-Mobile Northeast LLC, attached please find 
additional variations of the photosimulations originally presented on February 16, 2022.  The 
photosimulations have been revised to include (2) additional views from the south on Main Street as well 
as (3) additional design variations for the stealth enclosures.  The design variations for the stealth 
enclosures include 1) black enclosures; 2) brick enclosures; 3) light gray enclosures; and 4) front enclosure 
on Main Street tan brick to match front façade of building and rear enclosure on the parking lot side of 
the building traditional brick to match the rear façade of the building.   
 
 We look forward to meeting with the Commission at the March 16th hearing its next available 
meeting. Should there be questions concerning this application in the meantime, please call me at  978-
337-5210. We thank you for your consideration. 
   

Sincerely,  
 
 
 
       Amy White 
       Agent for T-Mobile Northeast LLC 
 
 
 

Page 19 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

KEY MAP OF PHOTOS

A
PP

R
O

X
. T

R
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

1 PHOTO LOCATION NUMBER

SUBJECT SITE LOCATION

MAP SYMBOL LEGEND

3

2

1

4

5

6

Page 20 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAP-1



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

VIEW #1
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST,

ON GILBO AVENUE

EXISTING
SUBJECT

BUILDING

Page 21 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-1E



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

VIEW #1
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST,

ON GILBO AVENUE

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 22 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-1P



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

VIEW #2
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE WEST,

ON SAINT JAMES STREET

EXISTING SUBJECT BUILDING

Page 23 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-2E



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

VIEW #2
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE WEST,

ON SAINT JAMES STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

PROPOSED T-MOBILE
CABLE TRAYS

Page 24 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-2P



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

VIEW #3
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE NORTH,

ON MAIN STREET

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 25 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-3E



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

VIEW #3
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE NORTH,

ON MAIN STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 26 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-3P



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

VIEW #4
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE EAST,

ON MAIN STREET

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 27 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-4E



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A

VIEW #4
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE EAST,

ON MAIN STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 28 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-4P



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A
VIEW #5

EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND GILBO AVENUE

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 29 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-5E



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A
VIEW #5

PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND GILBO AVENUE

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 30 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-5P



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A
VIEW #6

EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTH,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND EMERALD STREET

EXISTING SUBJECT
BUILDING (BEHIND TREES)

Page 31 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-6E



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION A
VIEW #6

PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTH,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN

STREET AND EMERALD STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 32 of 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 NORTH BROADWAY EAST PROVIDENCE, 02914 PH:  (401) 354-2403 (401) 354-2403 FAX:  (401) 633-6354(401) 633-6354

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4KN0339A

AutoCAD SHX Text
35-43 & 45-47 MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEENE, NH 03431

AutoCAD SHX Text
MR

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/07/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 MAIN ST KEENE RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-MOBILE NORTHEAST, LLC  15 COMMERCE WAY, SUITE B NORTON, MA 02766 OFFICE:  (508) 286-2700 FAX:  (508) 286-2893

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-6P



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

KEY MAP OF PHOTOS

A
PP

R
O

X
. T

R
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

1 PHOTO LOCATION NUMBER

SUBJECT SITE LOCATION

MAP SYMBOL LEGEND

3

2

1

4

5

6

Page 33 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

VIEW #1
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST,

ON GILBO AVENUE

EXISTING
SUBJECT

BUILDING

Page 34 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

VIEW #1
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST,

ON GILBO AVENUE

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 35 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

VIEW #2
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE WEST,

ON SAINT JAMES STREET

EXISTING SUBJECT BUILDING

Page 36 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

VIEW #2
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE WEST,

ON SAINT JAMES STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

PROPOSED T-MOBILE
CABLE TRAYS

Page 37 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

VIEW #3
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE NORTH,

ON MAIN STREET

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 38 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

VIEW #3
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE NORTH,

ON MAIN STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 39 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

VIEW #4
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE EAST,

ON MAIN STREET

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 40 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B

VIEW #4
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE EAST,

ON MAIN STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 41 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B
VIEW #5

EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND GILBO AVENUE

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 42 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B
VIEW #5

PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND GILBO AVENUE

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 43 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B
VIEW #6

EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTH,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND EMERALD STREET

EXISTING SUBJECT
BUILDING (BEHIND TREES)

Page 44 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION B
VIEW #6

PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTH,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN

STREET AND EMERALD STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 45 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

KEY MAP OF PHOTOS

A
PP

R
O

X
. T

R
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

1 PHOTO LOCATION NUMBER

SUBJECT SITE LOCATION

MAP SYMBOL LEGEND

3

2

1

4

5

6

Page 46 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

VIEW #1
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST,

ON GILBO AVENUE

EXISTING
SUBJECT

BUILDING

Page 47 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

VIEW #1
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST,

ON GILBO AVENUE

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 48 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

VIEW #2
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE WEST,

ON SAINT JAMES STREET

EXISTING SUBJECT BUILDING

Page 49 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

VIEW #2
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE WEST,

ON SAINT JAMES STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

PROPOSED T-MOBILE
CABLE TRAYS

Page 50 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

VIEW #3
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE NORTH,

ON MAIN STREET

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 51 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

VIEW #3
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE NORTH,

ON MAIN STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 52 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

VIEW #4
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE EAST,

ON MAIN STREET

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 53 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C

VIEW #4
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE EAST,

ON MAIN STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 54 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C
VIEW #5

EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND GILBO AVENUE

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 55 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C
VIEW #5

PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND GILBO AVENUE

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 56 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C
VIEW #6

EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTH,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND EMERALD STREET

EXISTING SUBJECT
BUILDING (BEHIND TREES)

Page 57 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION C
VIEW #6

PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTH,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN

STREET AND EMERALD STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 58 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

KEY MAP OF PHOTOS

A
PP

R
O

X
. T

R
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

1 PHOTO LOCATION NUMBER

SUBJECT SITE LOCATION

MAP SYMBOL LEGEND

3

2

1

4

5

6

Page 59 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

VIEW #1
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST,

ON GILBO AVENUE

EXISTING
SUBJECT

BUILDING

Page 60 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

VIEW #1
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST,

ON GILBO AVENUE

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 61 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

VIEW #2
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE WEST,

ON SAINT JAMES STREET

EXISTING SUBJECT BUILDING

Page 62 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

VIEW #2
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE WEST,

ON SAINT JAMES STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

PROPOSED T-MOBILE
CABLE TRAYS

Page 63 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

VIEW #3
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE NORTH,

ON MAIN STREET

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 64 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

VIEW #3
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE NORTH,

ON MAIN STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 65 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

VIEW #4
EXISTING VIEW FROM THE EAST,

ON MAIN STREET

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 66 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D

VIEW #4
PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE EAST,

ON MAIN STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 67 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D
VIEW #5

EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND GILBO AVENUE

EXISTING
SUBJECT
BUILDING

Page 68 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D
VIEW #5

PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND GILBO AVENUE

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 69 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D
VIEW #6

EXISTING VIEW FROM THE SOUTH,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN STREET

AND EMERALD STREET

EXISTING SUBJECT
BUILDING (BEHIND TREES)

Page 70 of 86



Civil Engineering - Site Development
Surveying - Telecommunications

ENGINEERING GROUP, P.C.
ADVANCED

OPTION D
VIEW #6

PROPOSED VIEW FROM THE SOUTH,
NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF MAIN

STREET AND EMERALD STREET

PROPOSED RF-TRANSPARENT
CONCEALMENT ASSEMBLY FOR
PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Page 71 of 86



Historic District  
Commissions: 

Roles and 
Responsibilities.

Stephen Buckley 

NHMA Legal Services Counsel

THE RIGHT-TO-KNOW LAW
& PUBLIC MEETINGS

2

1

2

Page 72 of 86



THE HISTORIC
DISTRICT COMMISSION
IS A PUBLIC BODY

 Meetings require 
notice, minutes, and 
public access

 “Work sessions” are 
meetings

 Hearings have 
additional requirements

3

MINUTES
 Kept and made available 

upon request within 5 
business days

 Include members present, 
people participating, 
summary of subject 
matter and decisions 
reached or action taken, 
persons make and 
seconding motions.

4

3

4

Page 73 of 86



NONPUBLIC

SESSIONS

5

Only for a specific reason91-A:3, II

Begin in public

Vote to enter nonpublic

Conduct the session

Return to public session

Vote on sealing minutes if appropriate

Consultation 
with Legal 
Counsel
RSA 91-A:2, I(b)

 Counsel must be 
present

 Contemporaneous 
dialogue

 Non-meeting

 Legal advice 
previously given

 Orally or in writing

 To one or more 
members

 Legal counsel doesn’t 
need to be present

 Nonpublic session

6

Consideration of 
Legal Advice
RSA 91-A:3, II(l)

5

6

Page 74 of 86



COMMUNICATIONS OUTSIDE A

MEETING

No electronic meeting  
Don’t hit reply all

No “meetings” by 
email string

Public bodies may only 
deliberate in properly 
held meetings 

May occur accidentally 

7

CONFLICTS OF

INTEREST & 
DISQUALIFICATION

8

7

8

Page 75 of 86



Land Use 
Boards, 
RSA 
673:14, I

No member of a . . . planning
board . . . shall participate in
deciding or shall sit upon the
hearing of any question which
the board is to decide in a
judicial capacity if that member
has a direct personal or
pecuniary interest in the
outcome which differs from the
interest of other citizens, or if
that member would be
disqualified for any cause to act
as a juror upon the trial of the
same matter in any action at
law. Reasons for disqualification
do not include exemption from
service as a juror or knowledge of 
the facts involved gained in the 
performance of the member's 
official duties.

The Juror Standard 
500-A:12 Examination. –

I. Any juror may be required by the court, 
on motion of a party in the case to be tried, 
to answer upon oath if he:

(a) Expects to gain or lose upon the 
disposition of the case;

(b) Is related to either party;
(c) Has advised or assisted either party;
(d) Has directly or indirectly given his 

opinion or has formed an opinion;
(e) Is employed by or employs any party 

in the case;
(f) Is prejudiced to any degree regarding 

the case; or
(g) Employs any of the counsel appearing 

in the case in any action then pending in the 
court.

II. If it appears that any juror is not 
indifferent, he shall be set aside on that trial.

9

10

Page 76 of 86



Abutters

Owners of property abutting the 
applicant’s property are 
disqualified from sitting on the 
application.  Totty v. Grantham, 
120 N.H. 390 (1980).

1
1

Prejudgment

Winslow v. Holderness, 125 
N.H. 262 (1984). A member 
was disqualified where, prior 
to joining the planning board, 
he had spoken, in his private 
capacity,  in favor of the 
project at a public hearing on 
the subdivision application

12

11

12

Page 77 of 86



Financial Interest in the 
Outcome
 A public officer is disqualified if he 

or she has “a direct personal and 
pecuniary interest” in the decision.  
The interest must be “immediate, 
definite, and capable of 
demonstration; not remote, 
uncertain, contingent, and 
speculative, that is, such that men 
of ordinary capacity and 
intelligence would not be 
influenced by it.” Atherton v. 
Concord, 109 N.H. 264 (1968).

13

Employment
 Sherman v. Brentwood, 112 N.H. 122 

(1972).  A ZBA member employed by 
Rockingham County in a food surplus 
program was not disqualified from hearing 
a case where the county was an applicant 
for a nursing home expansion.

 Appeal of City of Keene, 141 N.H. 797 
(1996). A county commissioner deciding 
on the public necessity for eminent 
domain for airport purposes was 
disqualified because his partner had 
represented a party to the case.

14

13

14

Page 78 of 86



Family Relations

Webster v. Candia, 146 N.H. 
430 (2001).  A planning 
board member was not 
disqualified when his spouse 
was a leading opponent of 
the project in an earlier 
phase.

1
5

Business Relationship

McLaughlin v. Union-Leader 
Corp., 99 N.H. 492 (1955).  A 
person who had regularly run an 
ad in the Union-Leader was not 
disqualified from sitting as a 
juror on a case in which the 
newspaper was a party.

1
6

15

16

Page 79 of 86



What do you do if you have a 
conflict?

RECUSAL DISCLOSURE ADVISORY 
VOTE, RSA 
673: 14, II

WHEN IN 
DOUBT, 

DON’T DO IT

HISTORIC DISTRICT

COMMISSION FUNDAMENTALS

18

17

18

Page 80 of 86



Preserving districts which reflect cultural, 
social, economic, political, community and 
architectural history
Conserving property values in such districts
Fostering civic beauty
Strengthening the local economy
Promoting the use of historic districts for 

the education, pleasure and welfare of the 
citizens of the municipality

Historic District 
Commission Purposes-
RSA 674:45

Powers and Duties of the Historic 
District Commission - RSA 674:46-a

20

 Adopt and amend regulations in the manner provided in 
RSA 675:6.

 Administer the regulations within the historic district as 
provided in RSA 676:8-10.

 Historic districts and regulations shall be compatible 
with the master plan and zoning ordinance.

 The historic district commission may assume, if 
authorized by the local legislative body, the composition 
and duties of heritage commissions.

19

20

Page 81 of 86



Important General Principles:
RSA 674:48

21

674:48 Interpretation. – Nothing in this 
subdivision shall be construed to prevent 
ordinary maintenance or repair of any 
structure or place within any historic district 
nor to prevent the construction, alteration, 
repair, moving or demolition of any structure 
under a permit issued by the building 
inspector or other duly delegated authority 
prior to the establishment of any historic 
district.

Historic 
District 
Commission
Is a Land 
Use Board

 3 to 7 members as 
decided by town 
meeting

 One member may be on 
the planning board and 
one member may be on 
the select board

 5 alternates may be 
appointed

 When appointing the 
select board may take 
into account appointee’s 
interest in historic 
preservation. 

21

22

Page 82 of 86



Land Use Boards Must 

 Adopt Rules of Procedure – RSA 676:1 -
concerning the method of conducting its 
business. 

 Rules of procedure shall be adopted at a 
regular meeting of the board and shall be 
placed on file with the town clerk for public 
inspection. 

 The rules of procedure shall include when 
and how an alternate may participate in 
meetings of the land use board.

Land Use Boards Must Also
 Under RSA  676:3 the commission shall issue a final 

written decision which either approves or disapproves 
an application for a permit and make a copy of the 
decision available to the applicant. 

 If the application is not approved, the board shall 
provide the applicant with written reasons for the 
disapproval. 

 If the application is approved with conditions, the 
board shall include in the written decision a detailed 
description of all conditions necessary to obtain final 
approval.

 The minutes of the meeting at which such vote is 
taken, including the written decision containing the 
reasons therefor and all conditions of approval, shall 
be placed on file in the board's office and shall be 
made available for public inspection within 5 business 
days of such vote. 

23

24

Page 83 of 86



RSA 676:8 Issuing Building Permit 
Approvals
 The HDC reviews applications for building permits to 

assess impact of the permit on the historic district by:

 Requesting reports and recommendations the 
planning board, fire chief, building inspector, 
health officer and other administrative officials 
who may possess information concerning the 
impact of the proposal on the historic district.

 Seeking advice from professional, educational, 
cultural or other groups or persons as may be 
deemed necessary for the determination of a 
reasonable decision.

 Filing with the building inspector or other duly 
delegated authority either a certificate of 
approval or a notice of disapproval following the 
review and determination of the application.

676:9 Procedure for Approval of 
Building Permits

 The HDC shall file a certificate of approval or a 
notice of disapproval pursuant to RSA 676:8, III 
within 45 days after the filing of the application 
for the certificate, unless the applicant agrees to 
a longer period of time.

 No building permit shall be issued until a 
certificate of approval has been filed with the 
building inspector; but, in the case of disapproval, 
notice of disapproval shall be binding upon the 
building inspector or other duly delegated 
authority, and no permit shall be issued.

 Failure to file the certificate within the specified 
period of time shall constitute approval by the 
commission.

25

26

Page 84 of 86



Rehearing and Appeal of 
HDC Decision 677:17

 RSA 677:17 – Any person or persons jointly 
or severally aggrieved by a decision of the 
historic district commission shall have the 
right to appeal that decision to the zoning 
board of adjustment in accordance with 
the provisions of RSA 676:5 and RSA 677:1-
14.

Important Court Cases
 RSA 676:8 placed on the historic commission the 

duty to reach a reasoned decision. Hanrahan v. 
Portsmouth, 119 N.H. 944, 409 A.2d 1336, 1979 
N.H. LEXIS 425 (N.H. 1979), limited, Ouellette v. 
Town of Kingston, 157 N.H. 604, 956 A.2d 286, 
2008 N.H. LEXIS 98 (N.H. 2008). 

 RSA 676:8 imposed a duty on district commissions 
to make a group assessment of information that 
was more than the mere personal opinion of one 
or more members. Hanrahan v. Portsmouth, 119 
N.H. 944, 409 A.2d 1336, 1979 N.H. LEXIS 425 
(N.H. 1979), limited, Ouellette v. Town of 
Kingston, 157 N.H. 604, 956 A.2d 286, 2008 N.H. 
LEXIS 98 (N.H. 2008). 

27

28

Page 85 of 86



THANK YOU for 
inviting NHMA to 
Keene! 

The New Hampshire Municipal Association is 
a nonprofit, non-partisan association 
working to strengthen New Hampshire 
cities and towns and their ability to serve 
the public as a member-funded, member-
governed and member-driven association 
since 1941. We serve as a resource for 
information, education and legal services.  
NHMA is a strong, clear voice advocating for 
New Hampshire municipal interests.

25 Triangle Park Drive, Concord, NH  03301
www.nhmunicipal.org or 
legalinquiries@nhmunicipal.org
603.224.7447 or NH Toll Free:  
800.852.3358

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org / 800.852.3358 
/ www.nhmunicipal.org

29

Page 86 of 86


	Agenda
	2022_02_16_HDC_Minutes_MB edits
	Staff Report_COA-2022-01_Continued Public Hearing
	Keene Historic District Commission
	4KN0339A_Permitting_Photosimulations_NSD_Option A Black.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-MAP1
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-1E
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-1P
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-2E
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-2P
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-3E
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-3P
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-4E
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-4P
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-5E
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-5P
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-6E
	4KN0339A_A AND E_ANCHOR_PS_030722_Rev2A-V-6P





